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PER CURIAM: 

  Michael Bruce Darcy was convicted by a jury of 

transporting a minor in interstate commerce with intent to 

engage in criminal sexual activity, in violation of 18 U.S.C.  

§ 2423(a) (West Supp. 2010), and travelling in interstate 

commerce with a minor for the purposes of engaging in illicit 

sexual conduct, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 2324(b) (West Supp. 

2010).  The district court sentenced Darcy to 151 months of 

imprisonment, and he now appeals.  Finding no error, we affirm. 

  Darcy argues that the court violated his Sixth 

Amendment right to counsel in denying his motion, made on the 

first day of trial, for a continuance to obtain new counsel.  

“We review for abuse of discretion a district court’s rulings on 

a motion to substitute counsel and on a request for a 

continuance.”  United States v. Reevey, 364 F.3d 151, 156 (4th 

Cir. 2004) (citation omitted).    

  “An essential element of the Sixth Amendment’s 

protection of right to counsel is that a defendant must be 

afforded a reasonable opportunity to secure counsel of his own 

choosing.”  United States v. Gallop, 838 F.2d 105, 107 (4th Cir. 

1988) (citations omitted).  However, a defendant’s right to 

counsel of his choosing is not unlimited, and “‘[s]uch right 

must not obstruct the orderly judicial procedure and deprive 

courts of the exercise of their inherent power to control the 
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administration of justice.’”  United States v. Mullen, 32 F.3d 

891, 895 (4th Cir. 1994) (quoting Gallop, 838 F.2d at 108).  In 

determining whether a defendant’s motion for a continuance to 

obtain new counsel should be granted, a district court should 

consider: “(1) the timeliness of his [motion]; (2) the adequacy 

of the court’s inquiry into his complaint about counsel; and (3) 

whether [the defendant] and his counsel experienced a total lack 

of communication preventing an adequate defense.”  Reevey, 364 

F.3d at 156-57 (internal quotation marks and citations omitted).   

We have thoroughly reviewed the record and conclude that the 

district court did not abuse its discretion in denying Darcy’s 

motion for a continuance to obtain new counsel. 

  Accordingly, we affirm the judgment of the district 

court.  We dispense with oral argument because the facts and 

legal contentions are adequately presented in the materials 

before the court and argument would not aid the decisional 

process. 

AFFIRMED 

 

 
 


